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Barnard Park Historic District; (NEHBS #DD05: Multiple)

2. Location
street & number area bounded by 4th, 8th, Union Sts.. & Platte Ave.  ralnot for publication
cily, town Fremont o] vicinity
state Nebraska code NE county Dodge code 053

zip code 68025

3. Classification
Ownership of Property

Category of Property Number of Resources within Property

K1 private ] building(s) Contributing Noncontributing
& 1 pubtic-local [x] district 168 45 _ buildings
[l public-State [site 1 sites
[1 public-Federal [ Istructure 4 10 _ structures
[ object 14 objects
187 55 _ Total
Name of related multiple property listing: Number of contributing resources previously
na listed in the National Register ___ 0

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify that this
nomination [_] request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.

In opinion, the r%@ meets, Ddoes not meet the National Register criteria. DSee continuation sheet. ‘
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entered in the National Register.

4" []see continuation sheet.
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National Register.

[:]removed from the National Register.
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6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (enter categories from instructions)
‘Domestic: Single Dwelling

Current Functions (enter categories from instructions)
Domestic: Single Dwelling

Domestic: Secondary Structure

__Funerary: Cemetery

Landscape: Park

Domestic: Multiple Dwelling

Domestic: Secondary Structure

Landscape: Park

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(enter categories from instructions)

Queen Anne

Bungalow/craftsman

Other: American Four Square

Materials (enter categories from instructions)

foundation __Brick

walls ____ Wood: Weatherhoard

Brick
roof Asphalt
other Wooden Porches

Brick Streets

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

Barnard Park--Description

The Barnard Park Historic District is a residential
district surrounding a city park in Fremont, Nebraska. The
neighborhood was platted in three different sections following
the initial platting of the town. The houses were built for the
professional and business community and are representative of
the architectural styles popular during the late nineteenth and
early twentieth centuries. The most numerous houses are Queen
Annes, bungalows, and American Four Squares. The district
contains 187 contributing resources, with the non-contributing
deemed so due to a combination of alterations and new
construction. The result is a district that readily conveys its
historic character. Of the contributing resources, 168 are
buildings, 4 are structures, 14 are objects, and one site.

The Barnard Park Historic District is located in Fremont,
Nebraska, the county seat of Dodge County. The residential area
is a square-shaped district situated in the south-central part
of the city and surrounds Barnard Park, the focal point of the
district (photo 1). Comprised of fourteen square blocks, the
district is bounded on the -east by Platte Avenue, divided by
landscaped boulevard islands, on the west by Union Street, on
the north by Eighth Street and Midland Lutheran College, and on
the south by Fourth Street.

The district is comprised of late nineteenth and early
twentieth century dwellings, the first of which were built in
the late 1860s. The earliest extant building dates to 1870,
with the other buildings constructed over the next several
decades. In the nineteenth century, one or two houses were
built on each block, occupying several lots (photo 2). After
1900 in-£fill construction took place (Figure 1). Such a process
is typical of early residential development on the Great
Plains. Of the extant houses, the largest number were
constructed during the decade of the 1920s and most of those
were built in the first half of the decade. The largest period
of construction was the prosperous era immediately following
the turn of the century (Figure 2). [x]See continuation sheet
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The buildings in the district represent various
architectural styles popular during the period of significance
(1870 to 1929). As a neighborhood comprised of business and
professional people of highexr, although varying, incomes, the
district is a mix of high style and vernacular house types
(photo 3). The most frequent type found in the district is the
vernacular house (photo 4) with various stylistic elements,
such as Prairie, Tudor, and Greek Revival (Figure 3). The
second most common type is the Queen Anne (photo 5), the first
of which was built in 1880 and the last in 1905. It is followed
by American Four Square (photo 6) and bungalow (photo 7). Of
the extant dwellings, the first American Four Square was built
in 1905 and the last in 1923. The bungalows range from 1910 to
1929. There are numerous other styles, as listed in Figure 3.
Porches are prominent on the majority of the houses, and almost
all have expansive lawns (photo 8). The most common
construction material is weatherboard, followed by brick, with
one unusual concrete block house (DD05:C-86, photo 9). Details
of each building are given in the Property Inventory at the end
of this section. There are 168 contributing buildings, of which
99 are houses (Figure 4), 67 are garages (see photo 7), and 2
are sheds. Of the 45 non-contributing buildings, 26 are houses
(Figure 4), 17 are garages, and there is one shed.

There are 4 contributing structures in the district. There
are eleven blocks of brick street (photo 10)--Fifth and Sixth
Streets between Union and Platte (4 blocks each), and Irving
Avenue between Fifth and Eighth Streets (3 blocks, less the
intersection at Military Avenue)-- that count as one structure.
There are also two fences and an original brick driveway dating
from the turn of the century. There are 14 contributing
objects. One is an original lamp post on private property, and
one is an 1898 planter. The others are the circa 1920 lamp
posts in Barnard Park (photo 11). The park itself (DD05:C-257),
with its grass and large trees, is a contributing site,
although its other fixtures date from a more recent era and are
non-contributing. The one square block of the park land has
always been an open, green space in the city of Fremont.

Dating from the original town plat, it was first used as a

cemetery and later converted to park land (photo 1l2--historic
view). '

The overall integrity of the district is extremely high.
With 187 contributing and 55 non-contributing resources, the
percentage is 77. Some buildings have been altered. The most
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common alteration is the covering of original materials with
asbestos siding (photo 13). Other buildings have had porch
alterations or additions. If the alterations did not prevent
the building from conveying its historic character, it was
counted as contributing. If the alterations were severe and
obscured the historic nature of the building, it was deemed
non-contributing (photo 4, second house from the left). There
are no buildings of very recent construction in the district,
as is often the case in older residential neighborhoods. A
relatively small number of the large homes have been converted
to multiple family dwellings. The changes necessary to
accommodate this, however, are unobtrusive (photo 14). There
are a few homes and garages that date from the construction
boom of the 1850s, mainly on the edge of the district, that are
non-contributing (photo 15).

The district is distinct in this part of the city. While it
originally extended further east, that area has suffered severe
alterations resulting in overall poor integrity. The
neighborhood to the south features smaller houses on smaller
lots, spaced closer together. The Central Business District is

located to the west and the campus of Midland Lutheran College
lies to the north.

Property Inventory

The list of properties provided below is in numerical order
by Nebraska Historic Buildings Survey (NEHBS) site number.
Descriptions for dwellings are given first, followed by
descriptions for secondary resources (e.g., garages, fences),
and a biographical statement about the owner or owners of the
house during the period of significance. The NEHBS prefix for
Barnard Park Historic District is DD0S5: (Dodge County,
Fremont). :
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c-73

c-74

C-75

C-76

Charles A. Keene House 550 East 4th Street ca. 1910

vernacular with Shingle and Craftsman influence, weatherboard, 1% story, foundation
brick, rectangular plan with additions to rear, gable roof with flat roof dormer at
front, pent roof on gables extending along roof line of 1 story porches on each side,
porches with square weatherboard columns supported by weatherboard balusters, central
entrance door with fan Tight and side 1ights, all with Teaded beveled plate glass,
flanked by 1 story bay windows, eighteen over one and nine over one double-hung sash
windows in bays.

Contributing garage: three bay, gable roof and shed roof dormer, pent roof over
multi-light hinged doors.

C.A., a son of L.M. Keene, Sr. (see DD05: C-130), managed the family's land holdings
and other interests.

John C. Hein House 612 East 4th Street ca. 1905 (photo #14)

Classical Revival, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle cross-gable roof, brick
foundation, cruciform plan, projecting polygonal 1 story bay front corner, flat
roof full frontal porch topped by iron railing, large multi-light window on front,
one over one double-hung sash windows, variant of Palladian window in front gable,
gable roof two bay garage attached to rear.

Hein was a son-in-law of L.P. Larson (see DD05: C-76) and was vice-president of
L.P. Larson Company and western agent for Anheuser Brewing Company, who also owned
a saloon in Fremont.

Charles Marr House 630 East 4th Street ca. 1907 (photo #14)

vernacular, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle hip roof, foundation brick,
square plan with full frontal porch with square brick columns and wood Doric columns
at corners, projecting bay on east, hip roof dormers, one over one double-hung sash
windows, wide over-hanging flared eaves, central entrance with side 1ights.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle hip roof, one bay, vertical
sliding door.

Marr was a son-in-law of L.P., Larson (see DDO5: C-76) and a partner in the Marr-
Hein Candy Company.

Louis P, Larson House 648 East 4th Street ca. 1888 (photo #14)

Romanesque Revival, brick, 2 story, asphalt shingle hip and multi-gable roof, brick
foundation and chimneys, irregular plan with 2 story bay on side, projecting entrance
vestibule with gable roof and diagonal bracing on front, shingle cheeks on gable

roof dormer with arched multi-light sash, shed and eye-1id dormers, red sandstone
lintels and sills, water table belt course, irregular pattern multi-1ight upper

sash, leaded stained glass transoms and arched windows, front door with sidelights.

Larson was a native of Sweden and operated a thriving wholesale liquor and cigar
business and had interests in the Fremont Foundry, Stockyards, Carriage Manufactory,
and Street Railway. He owned the Love Opera House after 1903 and was a member of
the State Legislature. He built homes for his two daughters and their husbands
adjacent to his own,
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c-77

C-81

C-82

c-83

John Hormel House 406 North Irving Avenue ca. 1871

Greek Revival in form with Italianate detailing, 2 story, asphalt shingle gable roof,
aluminum siding, rectangular plan with side wing and projecting 1 story bay on side,
foundation material not visible, brick chimney, arched pedimented windows with two
over two double-hung sash and louvered shutters, paired Italianate brackets support
eaves, entrance porch with balcony encircled by flat-cut baluster, door opens to
balcony, shed roof over concrete floor porch on side addition, front entrance with
arched transom and side lights.

Contributing buildings and structures include: two adjoined sheds; a decorative
cast-iron urn planter on a cast-iron pedestal, and the iron fence with gates which
surrounds the property.

Hormel was the first blacksmith to operate in Fremont in 1857.

Joseph E. Daly House 742 East 4th Street ca. 1921

vernacular, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle hip roof with flared eaves, brick
foundation and chimney, square plan with low pitch hip roof full frontal porch sup-
ported by square brick columns and brick balusters, hip roof dormer on front, shed

roof with diagonal braces over side entrance, one over one double-hung sash windows.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, two bay with vertical
sliding door.

Daly was a prominent Fremont attorney.

Earl Reynolds House 750 East 4th Street ca. 1929

vernacular, weatherboard, 1% story, asphalt shingle clipped gable roof and over-
sized clipped gable roof dormer on front, brick foundation, square plan with 1 story
rear addition, exposed rafter ends, perlins with diagonal braces, recessed porch at
front corner supported by battered wood column on brick pier, three over one vertical
light double-hung sash windows, gable porch roof with braces over side entrance.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle clipped gable roof, two bay, with
two cross-braced horizontal sliding doors, gable roof hood supported by diagonal
braces over the side door.

Reynolds was a partner in Reynolds Brothers Insurance Company.

J. C. Cook House 804 East 4th Street ca. 1916

vernacular, weatherboard, asphalt shingle multi-gable roof, brick foundation and
chimney, cruciform plan with shed roof screened porch supported by square wood
columns on paneled balusters, shed roof dormers on front and side, one over one
double-hung sash windows.

Cook was a prominent Fremont lawyer who gained a notable reputation as a flamboyant
Dodge County Attorney.
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C-85 House 405 North Platte Avenue ca. 1910
vernacular, vinyl siding, asphalt shingle gable roof, 1 story concrete block founda-
tion, rectangular plan with gable roof bay at side, one over one double-hung sash
windows, hip roof enclosed front porch supported by square wood columns on vinyl
siding balusters.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, two bay, wood shingles
in gable end and hinged panel doors.

C-86 A. D. Sears House 421 North Platte Avenue ca. 1921 (photo #9)
vernacular, decorative cast concrete block, slate gable roof, concrete block founda-
tion, 1% story, square plan with concrete block addition in rear, shed roof dormer at
front, decorative cast concrete columns on concrete bases support recessed porch,
cast concrete balusters.

Sears was manager of the Fremont Granite Brick Company and son-in-law of L. D.
Richards (see DD0O5: C-117).

C-87 Carl Schou House 435 North Platte Avenue ca. 1920
vernacular, weatherboard, asphalt shingle clipped gable roof with clipped gable
dormer on front, 1% story, square plan, recessed entry porch with sunroom to side
under roof, square wooden column, exposed perlins with diagonal braced brackets
under eaves, five over one vertical 1ight double-hung sash windows, hip roof wood
awning supported by diagonal braces over side windows.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, two bay.
Schou was a boilermaker for the Chicago & North Western Railroad Company.

C-114 H. J. Bremer House 835 East 5th Street «ca. 1912 (photo #21)
vernacular, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle hip roof with wide flared eaves
with hip roof dormer at front, brick foundation, square plan with 1 story addition
to rear, one over one double-hung sash windows, hip roof full frontal porch with
paired brackets under eaves supported by square brick and wood Tuscan columns on
brick piers and wood balusters. Non-contributing new construction attached weather-
board, asphalt shingle gable roof, two bay garage.

Bremer was an active insurance agent in Fremont.

C-115 August Saeger House 819 East 5th Street ca. 1905 (photo #21)
vernacular, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle hip roof with wide flared eaves
with hip dormer at front, brick foundation and chimney, square plan with 1 story
rear addition and projecting rectangular 2 story bay at side, four over one vertical
light double-hung sash windows, belt course across front with pediment supported by
paneled pilasters at front, front windows flanked by shutters.

Contributing garage: vinyl, asphalt shingle gable roof, two bay with vertical slid-
ing paneled door.

Saeger was a member of the well known Fremont cigar manufacturing firm Saeger & Sons.
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C-116 Nathaniel Pilsbury House 807 East 5th Street ca. 1899  (photo #21)
vernacular cottage, weatherboard, 1 story, asphalt shingle cross-gable roof, founda-
tion material not visible, brick chimney, cruciform plan, shed roof screened porch
with engaged gable roof over steps across front supported by square wood columns and
weatherboard balusters, one over one double-hung sash windows.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, two bay with two
vertical sliding paneled doors with four-light sash.

Pilsbury was a partner in Pilsbury & Veazie Company, dealers in hardware, stoves,
wagons and buggies.

C-117 Lucius Dunbar Richards House 810 East 5th Street ca. 1885
vernacular, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle multi-gable roof, brick founda-
tion, irregular plan with 1 story addition to rear and projecting 1 story bay at
side, one over one double-hung sash windows, hip roof screened porch across front
supported by five wood Tuscan columns on weatherboard baluster.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, two bay with four
Cross-braced wood hinged doors with four vertical 1ights.

Richards, a Vermont native and Civil War veteran, was a railroad survey engineer 1in
Missouri, Nebraska, and Costa Rica during the 1860's and 1870's who settled in
Fremont 417 T875. With L. M. Keene (see DD0O5: C-130), he founded the Fremont Stock-
yards and Land Company, Fremont National Bank, and many other area business ventures.
Richards was an unsuccessful Republican candidate for Nebraska governor in 1890.

C-118 Clark C. McNish House 745 East 5th Street ca. 1888 (photo #3)
Queen Anne, brick and shingle siding, 2 story, asphalt shingle hip roof with gable
roof dormers, stone foundation, brick chimney, irregular plan with projecting polyg-
onal 2 story bays at sides and polygonal 3 story tower with tent roof capped by
finial at front corner, first story brick, second story decorative cut wood shingles
with shingles on dormer cheeks and gables, gables with king post with pendant and
collar-tie, one over one double-hung sash windows, stone sills and lintels on first
story windows, belt course of stone at water table, elaborate frieze with denti-
tion and cornice at second story and second and third stories of tower, Tater clas-
sical revival encircling 1 story porch supported by Tuscan columns and wood balusters,
projecting pedimented gable supported by Tuscan columns at front, projecting circular
screened pavilion at corner.

Contributing garage: concrete block and cut shingle siding, asphalt shingle hip
roof, one bay, ca. 1905 semi-circular gravel drive with poured concrete curbs.

McNish, a prominent Nebraskaattorney, was involved in regional politics and also
organized several Wisner, Nebraska banks.
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C-119

C-120

c-121

C-122

A. J. Albers House 725 East 5th Street ca. 1916 (photo #3)

vernacular, weatherboard, 2 story, wood shingle gable roof, brick foundation, rec-
tangular plan, central eight-l1ight entry door with side 1ights flanked by hip roof
bays with multi-paned upper sash, wood shingle gable roof, single bay entry porch
supported by square brick columns, projecting 1 story hip roof, rectangular bay at
side.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, two bay with wood
shingles in gables.

Albers operated a wholesale liquor, wine and cigar business.

John Melick House 705 East 5th Street ca. 1920 (photo #3)

vernacular, aluminum siding, asphalt shingle gable roof, 2 story, concrete block
foundation, brick chimney, rectangular plan, gable roof porch across front supported
by short battered columns on brick piers, wood shingles and half-timbering in gables,
projecting rectangular shed roof bays on sides, shed roof hood over paired gable
windows, exposed perlins and diagonal braces, front door with sidelights, four over
one vertical light double-hung sash windows.

Non-contributing garage: new construction.
Melick was owner of Melick Coal & Lumber Company.

Dr. Andrew Harvey House 726 East 5th Street ca. 1916 (photos #18 & #24)

vernacular, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle hip roof, brick foundation, square
plan, hip roof full frontal porch with battered wood columns on concrete block piers,
wood baluster, one over one double-hung sash windows, projecting 1 story hip roof
bays on sides.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle hip roof, two bay.
A 1913 graduate of the University of Nebraska School of Medicine, Dr. Harvey prac-
ticed medicine until shortly before his death at over one hundred years of age.

Inger Sinamark House 716 East 5th Street ca. 1918 (photo #24)

vernacular, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle gable roof with over-sized gable
roof dormer on front, brick foundation and chimney, enclosed sunporch with hip roof
and engaged gable roof entrance porch across front, supported by square brick
columns and brick balusters, front door with side lights, projecting paired windows
on second story front, four over one vertical 1ight double-hung sash windows, set of
paired four-light sash in dormer, shed roof with diagonal braces over side entrance.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, one bay.
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Cc-123

Cc-124

C-125

C-126

Dr. Richard Van Metre House 706 East 5th Street ca. 1912 (photo #24)
vernacular, weatherboard, 2 story, wood shingle gable roof, brick foundation and
chimney, rectangular plan with rear addition, four over one double-hung sash win-
dows, pent roof over projecting rectangular three-window bay with entrance door

on front, balcony with paired doors on second story front, doors and windows flanked
by shutters, multi-paned semi-circular bay window on side, exposed rafter ends,
perlins with diagonal braces.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, wood shingle gable roof, two bay.

Dr. Van Metre was a graduate of the University of Iowa and a prominent Fremont
obstetrician.

J. Rex Henry House 650 East 5th Street ca. 1918 (photo #22)

vernacular, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle gable roof, brick foundation and
chimney, rectangular plan with 2 story sunporch addition at side, belt course, ex-
posed rafter ends in wide projecting eaves, low pitch hip roof on single bay en-
trance porch supported by battered columns on weatherboard piers, front door with
side 1ights, one over one double-hung sash windows, multi-paned casement sash
window over entrance porch.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, brick chimney,
one bay.

Contributing brick paving drive to garage from street.

Henry was secretary of the Fremont Telephone Company and involved in numerous other
business ventures.

John L. Schurman House 649 East 5th Street «ca. 1903

Colonial Revival, weatherboard and wood shingle siding, 1% story, asphalt shingle
gambrel cross-gable roof, brick foundation, rectangular plan, projecting bays at
side, variant of Palladian window with arched leaded stained glass transom in front
gable, recessed entrance porch and sunroom under hip roof across front, one over one
double-hung sash windows, applied carved paneling flanked by windows on side gable,
porch supported by wood Tuscan columns with wood spindle baluster.

Schurman was a well-known real estate and insurance broker in Fremont.

E. H. Rogers House 637 East 5th Street ca. 1898

Italianate, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle Tow pitch hip roof, brick founda-
tion, irregular plan with projecting 2 story bays on sides, wide bracketed eaves,
one over one double-hung sash windows, hip roof porch across front with bracketed
eaves supported by paired wood Tuscan columns on weatherboard piers and balusters,
weatherboard enclosed addition at corner of porch, shed roof over side entrance door.

Non-contributing new construction garage.

Rogers was a member of the 1859 and 1866 Nebraska Territorial Legislature and the
first State Senate and was active in real estate and banking circles.
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C-127 Ernest Schurman - George Staats House 611 East 5th Street ca. 1898
Italianate, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle Tow pitch hip roof with engaged
front gable, brick foundation and chimney, rectangular plan with additions to side,
encircling hip roof porch with pedimented gable over steps supported by wood Tuscan
columns with wood spindle balusters, flat roof two bay porch on side with turned
posts, one over one double-hung sash windows with cornice heads, second story central
window at front with pediment hood, eaves with entablature of pendant brackets and
cut work applique, rear addition with hip roof wall dormers on sides, one bay porch
at rear with turned posts and brackets.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, two bay.

Schurman served as president of the Commercial National Bank. Staats was a prominent
dealer in farm and city realty and was a member of the 1917 State Legislature.

C-128 Fred H. Richards House 620 East 5th Street ca. 1910 (photo #22)
vernacular, brick, 2 story, asphalt shingle hip roof with flared wide projecting
eaves, hip roof weatherboard dormer on front, concrete foundation, brick chimney,
rectangular plan, hip roof screened porch across front supported by paired wood
Tuscan columns on concrete block piers, steps to front and side, one over one
double-hung sash windows, dormer with multi-square-light sash.

Contributing garage: stucco, asphalt shingle hip roof with flared eaves, two bay.

Richards was a well-known Fremont attorney and son of L. D. Richards (see DDO5:
c-117).

C-129 Zach Shedd House 608 East 5th Street ca. 1870 (photo #22)
vernacular Gothic Revival (distinguishing detail removed), weatherboard, 2 story,
asphalt shingle cross-gable roof, concrete block foundation, rectangular plan, hip
roof screened porch across front supported by square wood columns on weatherboard
balusters, one over one double-hung sash windows.

Shedd was owner of Shedd's Opera House in the 1870's and 1880's; the house was later
occupied by David Welty, general manager of the the Fremont Saddlery.

C-130 Lewis McClain Keene House 545 East 5th Street ca. 1880 (photos #2 & #10)
Gothic Revival, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle gable and clipped gable roof,
brick foundation, irregular plan, projecting 1 story bays at sides with bracketed
cornice, two over two double-hung sash windows, second story upper sash with clip-
ped top corners, cornice window heads, eave cornice with brackets and sawn and in-
cised applique, round four-1ight window in front gable, gables with cut work tracery
and king post and collar-tie, ca. 1905 encircling low pitch hip roof porch supported
with wood Tuscan columns with paneled and turned spindle balusters, projecting flat
hood over steps, arched stained leaded glass on first story front and second story
side, stained leaded glass transom over entrance door with address numeral in design.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle hip roof, two bay.

A native of Maine, Keene settled in Nebraska in 1867 and eventually acquired large
tracts of farm land and numerous residential and commercial properties in Fremont.
He built houses for his sons, L.M. Keene, Jr. (DDO5: C-134) and C.A. Keene (DDO5:
C-73), adjacent to his own.
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C-131 House 548 East 5th Street ca. 1902 (photo #26)
vernacular cottage, aluminum siding, 1 story, asphalt shingle hip roof with hip roof
dormer at front, brick foundation and chimney, rectangular plan, recessed entrance
porch with arched portals, projecting rectangular bays at side, one over one double-
hung sash windows, multi-paned triangular 1ight double-hung sash in dormer, entrance
door with transom and side 1ights.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle hip roof, one bay.

C-132 Judge W. H. Munger House 534 East 5th Street ca. 1880 (photo #26)
vernacular Italianate, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle hip and gable roof,
concrete block foundation, L-shape irregular plan, one over one double-hung sash
windows, hip roof porch with pedimented gable over steps across front supported by
wood Tuscan columns, wood open balusters. ’

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable, two bay.
Munger was Federal Judge for the District Court of Nebraska.

C-133 John Theilen House 504 East 5th Street ca. 1872  (photos #23 & #26)
vernacular Italianate, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle low pitch hip roof,
brick foundation, square plan with 1 story flat and gable roof later additions to
rear, projecting rectangular bay at front topped by arched pediment, hip roof porch
across front supported by square wood columns on brick piers, paneled wood balusters,
front door with side 1ights, one over one and two over two double-hung sash windows,
architrave window frames, street address numerals etched in transom light over front
door,

Theilen was president of the Fremont Saddlery Company in 1872. The Theilen house
was later occupied by Herman Blumenthal, leading Fremont merchant and department
store owner,

C-134 Lewis M. Keene, Jr. House 521 East 5th Street ca. 1895 (photos #2 & #10)
Colonial Revival, weatherboard and wood shingle siding, 1% story, asphalt shingle
gambrel roof, concrete block foundation, rectangular plan, numerous projecting
polygonal bays at sides, oversized gable roof dormer with encircling cornice at
front with paired multi-paned double-hung sash windows flanked by twelve-light
single sash windows with scrolled aprons, gables and dormer shingled, arched gable
windows with tracery in upper sash, recessed porch across front supported by paired
wood Tuscan columns on weatherboard baluster piers, open terrace at side with pro-
jecting side entrance vestibule, front door with transom and side lights.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, gable dormer, three
bay.

Contributing cottage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, 1-story.
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C-135 Thad H. Quinn House 507 East 5th Street ca. 1915 (photos #2 & #10)
Tudor Revival, brick and stucco, wood shingle gable roof, brick foundation and
chimney, rectangular plan with projecting 2 story brick sunporch on side and pro-
Jecting gables over flat bay window and entrance with square brick columns, open
terrace across front, half-timbering in all gable ends, brick first story, stucco
second story with belt course, exposed rafter ends.

Contributing garage: weatherboard and wood shingle siding, asphalt shingle gable
roof, two bay, vertical siding paneled door.

Quinn was a well-known merchant and owner of Quinn's Department Store in Fremont.

C-146 Blaine McCord - Dr. Charlotte P. Siever House 507 East 6th Street ca. 1900

(photo #25)
vernacular, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle gable and shed roof, concrete
block foundation, rectangular plan with addition to side, gable roof dormers on
opposing sides, hip roof porch with pedimented gable with numerals "507" over steps
extending across front supported by five square tapered wood columns on concrete
block piers, open wood balusters, one over one double-hung sash windows, dual front
entry to living quarters and to ca. 1915 medical office addition.

| Cont?ibuting garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle hip roof, two bay, wood cross-
braced doors.

Dr. Sievek was a 1915 graduate of Creighton University and secretary of the Dodge
County‘Medical Society.

C-147 MWillard Fowler House 521 East 6th Street ca. 1882 (photo #25)

vernacular cottage, weatherboard, 1% story, asphalt shingle gable roof, brick founda-

tion and chimney, rectangular plan with 1 story addition with hip roof at side, hip
roof porch supported by turned posts with wood spindle baluster across front, two
over two double-hung sash windows in gables, one over one double-hung sash windows
in first story.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, one bay.

Fowler was secretary/treasurer of the Security Savings Bank and of the Western
Trust Company.
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C-148

C-149

C-150

Wilson Reynolds - Otto Pohl - Charles Marr House 508 East 6th Street ca. 1885
vernacular Romanesque Revival, brick 2 story, asphalt shingle multi-gable and hip
roof, limestone and concrete block foundation, irregular plan with projecting
polygonal 2 story bay with hip roof at side, ca. 1910 hip roof porch with pedi-
mented gable over steps extending across front supported by square brick columns,
brick balusters, 3 story square tower with pyramidal roof, gables and third story
tower with cut wood shingles and pent roof surrounding all, formed sheet iron cor-
nice with dentition at second story roof line and third story roof line of tower,
sheet iron decorative head blocks on second story windows, one over one double-hung
sash windows, upper sash in polygonal bay with border of small colored glass square
and rectangular 1lights, leaded stained glass transom over carved and paneled front
door with oval beveled glass, leaded stained glass arched transom over large front
plate glass window, three-quarter round windows in gables supported by scrolled
sills, stone sills on first and second story windows, and stone window and door
lintels on first story.

Contributing garage: ca. 1910, brick, asphalt shingle hip roof, three bay.
Contributing cast and wrought iron fence in rear yard.

Reynolds was a livestock breeder and successful dealer in sheep and-later vice-
president of the Nebraska Binder Twine Company. Pohl was prominent in community
betterment programs and a successful druggist. Marr was a son-in-law of

L. P. Larson (see DDO5: C-76) and was active in the Marr-Hein Candy Company.

D. Radford House 530 East 6th Street ca. 1911 (photo #6)

vernacular, aluminum siding, 2 story, asphalt shingle hip roof with hip roof dormers
at front and side, concrete block foundation, brick chimney, square plan, hip roof
porch with pedimented gable over steps supported by battered wood columns on con-
crete block piers, open wood baluster, one over one double-hung sash windows, pro-
jecting hip roof stair Tanding on side.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, one bay, three-
vertical-light sash in paneled hinged doors.

Radford was a prominent insurance agent.

W. J. Miles House 548 East 6th Street ca. 1910 (photo #15)

vernacular, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle hip roof with three hip roof
dormers, concrete block foundation, square plan, encircling porch with hip roof and
pedimented gable across corner steps supported by paired wood Tuscan columns on
concrete block piers, open wood balusters, projecting corner entry vestibule, five
over one double-hung sash windows on first and second stories with upper sash with
diagonal square 1light surrounded by triangular 1ights.

Contributing garage: weatherboard and wood shingle siding, asphalt shingle gable
roof, one bay.

Miles was manager of J. & W. C. Shull Company, a lumber and coal business.
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C-151 Enos Gray House 609 East 6th Street ca. 1890 (photos #5 & #13)
vernacular Queen Anne, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle hip and gable roof
with polygonal turret with tent roof at corner, brick foundation and chimney,
irregular plan with 2 story bay at side and polygonal 2% story tower, half-round
bay on second story front surmounted by pedimented gable with variant of Palladian
window, one over one double-hung sash windows with transoms on front door and
first story tower windows, shed roof with pedimented gable over steps across por-
tion of front supported by wood Tuscan columns with weatherboard balusters, arched
stained leaded glass window over paired one over one double-hung sash windows at
side.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle hip roof, three bay.
Gray was a successful local attorney whose daughter Vesta was also an attorney.

C-152 Frances McGivern House 649 East 6th Street ca. 1885 (photo #13)
vernacular Queen Anne, asbestos shingle siding, 2 story, asphalt shingle cross-
gable roof, brick foundation with brick interior chimney, cruciform plan, hip roof
front porch supported by square brick piers and open brick balusters, arched front
door, one over one double-hung sash windows.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, two bay.

C-153 John Albert Van Anda House 707 East 6th Street ca. 1915 (photo #15)
vernacular, weatherboard, wood shingle gable roof, 2 story, brick foundation,
rectangular plan, projecting hip roof bay at side, shingle and vertical half-
timbering in gables, hip roof porch across front supported by square brick columns,
wood balusters, paneled wood door with side lights, four over one double-hung
sash windows.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, two bay.

Van Anda was involved in the grocery business and was also assistant cashier at
the Commercial National Bank.

C-154 A. 0. Noreen House 708 East 6th Street ca. 1892
Queen Anne, weatherboard, asphalt shingle cross-gable roof, 2 story, concrete
block foundation, gable roof porches supported by iron columns on front and side,
cruciform plan, new construction 1 story hip roof addition to side, attached gable
roof two bay garage at rear, one over one double-hung sash windows, stationary
aluminum awnings on side.

Noreen was involved in the clothing business.
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C-155 House 732 East 6th Street ca. 1921 (photo #7)

C-156

C-157

C-158

Bungalow, weatherboard, 1 story, asphalt shingle gable roof with gable roof dormer
on side, concrete block foundation, brick chimney, rectangular plan with projecting
rectangular bay at side, gable roof porch across front supported by battered wood
columns on concrete block piers, paneled wood balusters, shingle and vertical half-
timbering in gables of roof and porch, exposed rafter ends and perlins with diagonal
braces in eaves.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, wood shingle gable roof, one bay, six vertical
lights in horizontal sliding paneled door.

Michael Krasne House 721 East 6th Street ca. 1921

vernacular, weatherboard, 2 story, wood shingle gable roof, brick foundation and
chimney, rectangular plan with rear addition, hip roof supported by entrance vesti-
bule and iron grill columns, iron grill balusters, multi-light double-hung sash
windows flanked by shutters, fan light window in front gable, decorative brick and
iron grill fence surrounds adjoining lot on property.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, one bay.
Krasne owned a women's clothing store in Fremont.

Frank Fuhlrodt House 739 East 6th Street ca. 1927 (photo #15)

Tudor Revival, brick and stucco, wood shingle hip and gable roof, 2 story, brick
foundation and chimney, painted brick first story with water table belt course,
stucco second story, twelve over twelve, eight over twelve, six over six, and

four over four double-hung sash windows, projecting gable roof entrance vestibule
with arched paneled door with semi-circular steps, dormer hood over paired second
story windows, recessed porch at corner with arched opening and stone floor, stucco
and vertical half-timbering in front gable.

Fuhlrodt was a well-known Fremont postmaster.

Niels Nielsen House 752 East 6th Street ca. 1895

vernacular, aluminum siding, 2 story, asphalt shingle multi-gable roof, brick
foundation and chimney, rectangular plan with one story gable roof addition to rear,
encircling hip roof porch with corner enclosed and supported by square columns and
aluminum siding balusters, six over one double-hung sash windows, shed roof, one

bay garage attached to side.

Nielsen was a merchant tailor for the Eddy Brothers Department Store in Fremont.
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C-159 P. L. 0'Connell House 830 East 6th Street ca. 1885
vernacular, weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof with gable roof engaged dormer,
foundation material not visible, 2 story rectangular plan with 1 story addition to
rear, shed roof on porch extending across front, enclosed with weatherboard
baluster and one over one aluminum-frame windows, two over one double-hung sash
windows.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, one bay.

C-160 Bert May House 545 North Platte Avenue ca. 1920
Modified Georgian Revival, brick, 2 story, slate gable roof, brick foundation,
rectangular plan with 2 story rectangular sun porch at side, heavy wood brackets
support wide eaves, paired wood brackets support hood over front door which is
surrounded by dressed stone, one over one double-hung sash windows, belt course
of stone at water table.

Contributing garage: brick, asbestos shingle gable roof, two bay with vertical
sliding paneled door.

May was a second-generation partner in the firm of May Brothers, wholesale grocers,
and was involved in other business pursuits.

C-177 Frank T. Hanlon House 765 East Military Avenue ca. 1903
vernacular Queen Anne with Classical Revival detailing, weatherboard, 2 story,
asphalt shingle hip and cross-gable roof, brick foundation, rectangular plan with
three projecting bays on front and sides, second story rectangular bays supported
by scroll brackets, variant of Palladian window in each second-story bay, brick
piers surmounted by tapered square wood columns supporting gable and hip porch
across front with weatherboard balusters, one over one double-hung sash windows.

Contributing building: ca. 1915 garage remodeled ca. 1940 for grocery store; con-
verted ca. 1960 to cottage apartment: vernacular bungalow, weatherboard, asphalt
shingle clipped-gable roof, foundation material not visible, T-plan, exposed per-
lins, 1 story, six over one light double-hung sash windows, large single light
window and door on front.

Hanlon was the owner of a thriving local grocery business.

C-178 E. L. Heald House 749 East Military Avenue ca. 1910
Bungalow, weatherboard, 1% story, asphalt shingle gable roof with gable dormer at
front, foundation brick, rectangular plan, recessed porch across front supported
by square brick columns, wood balusters, four over one vertical light double-hung
sash windows, exposed perlins and brackets supporting wide eaves.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle hip roof, two bay, fiberglass
vertical sliding door; shared with property to west.

Heald was a traveling salesman.
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C-179 C. E. Kirkpatrick - Rev. Holmes Dysinger House 737 East Military Avenue ca. 1905
vernacular Queen Anne, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle gable and hip roof
with flared eaves with wide overhang, brick foundation and chimney, irregular plan,
2 story bays on front and both sides, one over one 1ight double-hung sash windows,
porch with hip roof supported by Tuscan columns and pilasters extends across front,
weatherboard baluster.

Contributing garage: weatherboard and asbestos siding, asphalt shingle gable roof,
one bay; presently serves as dwelling.

C-180 House 717 East Military Avenue ca. 1900
Queen Anne, asbestos shingle siding, wood and asphalt shingle multi-gable and hip
roof, 2 story, foundation material not visible, irregular plan, projecting 2 story
bays with brackets supporting gable roofs on front and sides, new construction
1 story asphalt shingle gable and hip roof addition to side with stationary awnings,
hip roof porch with gable pediment over steps across front supported by wood Tuscan
columns and iron balusters, one over one double-hung sash windows, attached new
construction shed roof one bay garage at rear.

C-184 House 505 East Military Avenue ca. 1900
vernacular, weatherboard, asphalt shingle hip roof, foundation material not visible,
square plan, hip roof porch with pediment over steps on front supported by wood
lattice columns, numerals "505" in pediment, one over one double-hung sash windows.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle hip roof, one bay.

C-218 C. V. Roberts House 430 North Irving Avenue ca. 1920
vernacular, weatherboard, 1% story, asphalt shingle clipped gable roof with shed
roof on engaged dormer, concrete block foundation, square plan with projecting
rectangular bay on front with pent roof, exposed perlins with diagonal braces under
roof eaves, gable roof supported by cross-braces and diagonal-braced brackets over
front door, four over one vertical 1ight double-hung sash windows.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, one bay.

C-228 House 504 East 4th Street ca. 1900
vernacular, weatherboard, asphalt shingle multi-gable roof, two hip dormers on side,
1% story, foundation material not visible, rectangular plan with 1 story addition
to rear, cut wood shingles in gables, concrete slab hip roof porch supported by
iron co]umns and balusters across front.

Non-contributing garage: new construction.
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C-229

C-235

C-244

C-245

C-246

House 512 East 4th Street ca. 1885

vernacular, weatherboard, asphalt shingle hip and gable roof, 2 story, foundation
material not visible, brick interior chimney, rectangular plan with encircling
open and screened hip roof porch supported by square wood columns on weatherboard
baluster, cut wood shingles in front gable, one over one double-hung sash windows.

Elias Harmon House 740 East 5th Street ca. 1916 (photos #18 & #24)

Bungalow, weatherboard, 1 story, asphalt shingle hip roof, gable roof extends over
screened porch at front, brick foundation and chimney, belt course, four over one
vertical 1ight double-hung sash windows, porch supported by square wood columns on
weatherboard balusters.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle hip roof, one bay.
Harmon was a conductor for the Chicago & North Western Railroad Company.

Henry Rump House 743 East Military Avenue ca. 1921

vernacular, weatherboard, 2 story, asphalt shingle hip roof with hip dormer at
front, foundation brick, square plan with 2 story rectangular bay at side, gable
roof porch extending across front, supported by battered columns resting on brick
piers, wood balustrades, half-timbering in porch gable, one over one double-hung
sash windows.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, two bay; shared
with adjoining property.

Rump was the owner of the Fremont Furnace & Metal Works.

Miner Hinman House 545 East Military Avenue ca. 1891/1915

vernacular, brick veneer (originally 2 story weatherboard adapted ca. 1915),

1 story, asphalt shingle-gable roof with cross-gables and cornice return, brick
foundation, cruciform plan, shed roof front porch with square wood columns on
brick piers.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle hip roof, two bay.
Hinman was president of the Fremont Foundry and secretary of the Fremont Carriage
Manufactory.

Louis Coman House 533 North Clarkson Avenue ca. 1911

vernacular Bungalow, weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, 1 story, brick founda-
tion, rectangular plan with gable roof porch extending across front, square wood
columns, weatherboard balusters, projecting entrance vestibule, one over one
double-hung sash windows, projecting rectangular bay at side.

Coman was a grain dealer and the manager of the Postal Telegraph-Cable Company.



NPS Form 10-800-a
(8-30)

OMB Approval No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number __7___ Page __ 18

C-247

C-251

C-252

C-257

C-258

House 625 North Clarkson Avenue ca. 1875

vernacular, weatherboard, asphalt shingle hip roof with pedimented gable on front,
foundation material not visible. rectangular plan, hip roof porch extends across
front supported by four wood Tuscan columns, wood balusters, two over two double-
hung sash windows.

Former home of Mrs. Carrie H. Nye, well-known music teacher.

Raymond Peterson House 632 North Union Street ca. 1916

vernacular, weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof with shed roof dormer, 1 story,
rectangular plan with porch recessed under roof supported by square tapered wood

columns on weatherboard balusters, one over one double-hung sash windows, exposed
rafter ends and perlins with brackets supporting eaves.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, one bay.
Peterson was a department manager at the Hammond Printing Company.

Bela Baldwin House 533 East 6th Street ca. 1890  (photo #25)

vernacular, weatherboard, 1% story, asphalt shingle multi-gable roof with large
gable dormer on side, concrete block foundation, rectangular plan with addition to
side, one over one double-hung sash windows, hip roof porch across front supported
by square wood columns and weatherboard balusters.

Baldwin was a partner in Baldwin & Coman, dealers in horses and was the owner of
the Star Livery Barn.

Barnard Park ca. 1885 (photos #1, #11, #12, #16)

Barnard Park was originally platted as Green Grove Cemetery in the early 1860's
following the incorporation of the Fremont Cemetery Association on 1 December,
1862. The square block was subsequently named for early town surveyor E, H.
Barnard in the mid-1880's following removal of the graves to Ridge Cemetery
Tocated West of the city in 1878. The park serves as a geographic Tandmark for
the neighborhood and retains the ca. 1920 cast iron lamp standards as well as
the diagonal walkway plan which is visible in an 1874 bird's eye view of the
town. The restroom building and the playground equipment date to a later era
and are non-contributing.

House 524 East 4th Street ca. 1920

vernacular Tudor cottage, stucco/half-timbering, asphalt shingle gable and hip
roof, 1 story, foundation material not visible, exterior stucco chimney on front
four over four and four over one 1ight double-hung sash windows.

3
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C-259 House 746 East 5th Street «ca. 1920 (photos #18 & #24)
vernacular, stucco, 1% story, wood shingle gable roof with shed roof dormer,
foundation material not visible, brick chimney, square plan with hip roof sunroom
addition to side, gable roof over front door, concrete slab open porch with iron
railing, irregular pattern multi-1ight upper sash over one 1ight double-hung sash
windows.

Contributing garage: stucco, asphalt shingle gable roof, one bay.

C-260 House 515 East 6th Street ca. 1900 (photo #25)
vernacular cottage, weatherboard, 1% story, asphalt shingle gable roof, foundation
material not visible, rectangular plan with side addition, one over one double-hung
sash windows, hip roof, front porch with turned wood posts, wood shingles in front
gable.

Contributing shed: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof.

C-261 House 625 East 6th Street ca. 1920 (photo #13)
vernacular, vinyl siding, 1 story, asphalt shingle cross-gable roof, brick founda-
tion, brick interior chimney, rectangular plan, gable roof porch on square wood
columns supported by square brick piers, six over one double-hung sash windows.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, one bay.

C-262 House 645 East 6th Street ca. 1920 (photo #13)
vernacular cottage, vinyl siding, 1 story, wood shingle gable roof, brick founda-
tion, exterior brick chimney at side, irregular plan, six over six double-hung
sash windows, arched hood over front door.

Contributing garage: vinyl siding, wood shingle gable roof, one bay.

C-263 House 607 North Platte Avenue ca. 1920
vernacular, weatherboard and asbestos siding, 2 story, asphalt shingle gable roof,
brick foundation, rectangular plan, rectangular shed roof bay at side, exposed per-
lins in gable ends and in gable roof of porch across front supported by square brick
columns, multi-1ight wood front door, four over one vertical 1ight double-hung
sash windows.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, one bay.

C-264 House 630 North Irving Avenue ca. 1920
vernacular, vinyl siding, 2 story, asphalt shingle gable roof, concrete block founda-
tion, brick interior chimney, rectangular plan, gable roof porch at front supported
by square wood columns on square concrete block piers, one over one double-hung
sash windows.

Contributing garage: weatherboard, asphalt shingle gable roof, one bay.
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C-265 House 524 North Clarkson Avenue ca. 1920
vernacular, asbestos siding, asphalt shingle gable roof, 2 story, concrete block
foundation, square plan, hip roof front porch supported by square wood columns on
weatherboard baluster, one over one double-hung sash windows, stationary aluminum
awnings on side.

D-15 William Freeman - George L. Loomis House 534 East Military Avenue ca. 1888
Queen Anne, weatherboard and wood shingle siding, 2% story, asphalt shingle gable
and hip roof, stone foundation, brick chimneys, three gable dorm<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>